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The Planning Board of the Town of Cicero held a meeting on Monday, June 13, 2016 at 
6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall at 8236 Brewerton Road, Cicero, New York 13039. 

  
Agenda:  
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approval of Minutes from the May 23, 2016 Meeting (Approved) 
 Discussion – Zone Change Hearings 
 Minor Subdivision Preliminary and Final Plan, Set Public Hearing, Christopher Pisanti, 

Whiting Road, Tax Map No. 087.-12-18.0), 2 Lots, Ianuzi & Romans (Public Hearing 
Set for 06.27.16 Meeting) 

 Site Plan, Peter N. Talev, 8033 Brewerton Road, Proposed additional parking and drive, 
Ianuzi & Romans (To Return per Applicant Request) 

 Site Plan, Mid Country Properties, LLC, 9206 Brewerton Road, Proposed building and 
additional parking, Ianuzi & Romans (Approved) 

 Site Plan, Sketch Review, Michael Jordan, 7778 Brewerton Road, Proposed church and 
thrift store, Ianuzi & Romans (To Return) 

 Site Plan, Approach Associates, Stewart Drive West (Tax Map No. 057.-02-29.3), 
Proposed building, C&S Engineers, Inc. (To Return per Applicant Request) 

 Site Plan, Sketch Review, Cantech Automotive, 6267 E. Taft Road, Proposed storage 
building, Bardoun Land Surveying (To Return) 

 Site Plan, Sketch Review, Visions Federal Credit Union, 5788 East Circle Drive, 
Proposed building, Delta Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors (To Return) 

 
Board Members Present: Bob Smith (Chairman), Mark Marzullo, Greg Card (Ad Hoc), Joe 
Ruscitto and Chuck Abbey. 
 
Others Present: Neil Germain, Planning Board Attorney, Mark Parrish, Planning Board 
Engineer and Richard Hooper, Codes Enforcement. 
 
Chairman Smith opened the meeting by noting the locations of the three emergency exits, asked 
that all cell phones be silenced and noted if anyone had difficulty hearing the proceedings please 
bring it to the Clerk’s attention so the audio system could be adjusted. 
 
Mr. Abbey led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Smith asked for everyone to remain standing for a moment of silence to remember 
those lost in the Orlando shooting. 
 
Chairman Notes:  Pat Honors has resigned from the Board.  Mr. Card will be filling in.  It is with 
much regret that we accept Mr. Honor’s resignation.  He was an asset to this Board and we 
appreciate his service.  Mr. Marzullo has agreed to serve as Deputy Chair and I am appointing 
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Mr. Marzullo at this time.  The Town Board will fill the vacancy for the Planning Board 
Member.  Mr. Marzullo’s appointment is effective immediately. 
 
Approval of Minutes of May 23, 2016 Meeting: 
 
Mr. Abbey made a motion to approve the Planning Board Minutes from May 23, 2016.  Mr. 
Marzullo seconded the motion.  The Chairman called a vote.   
 
In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 
Discussion:  Zone Change Hearings 
 
Chairman Notes:  The zone change is moving forward.  The Town Board would like us to hold 
additional public hearings.  This involves the Route 11 corridor from Bear Road to the Oswego 
County line, Route 31 from the Town of Clay line east to South Bay Road, Taft Road from the 
Town of Clay east to Northern Boulevard.  The actual number of properties affected is quite 
small as most are properly zoned.  Mr. Germain, will you please construct a motion for the Board 
to hold a public hearing for the next two Planning Board meetings. 
 
Mr. Germain:  You are going to move for the adoption of a resolution calling for a Public 
Hearing to consider a zone change to general commercial for properties located along and 
contiguous to the Route 11 commercial corridor.  This public hearing shall commence at 6:30 pm 
at the regular scheduled meeting of the planning board on Monday, June 27, 2016. 
 
Chairman Smith put this in the form of a Motion.  Seconded by Mr. Ruscitto. 

In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 
 

MINOR SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY & FINAL PLAN 
SET PUBLIC HEARING 

CHRISTOPHER PISANTI (LANDS OF PISANTI) 
WHITING ROAD (TAX MAP NO. 087.-12-18.0) 

2 LOTS 
IANUZI & ROMANS 

 
Tim Coyer, Representative Ianuzi & Romans 
 
Mr. Coyer:  We are here to ask for a public hearing to be set.   
 
Chairman Smith:  I do have one question, what is the access? 
 
Mr. Coyer:  Brandy Lane for both lots. 
 
Chairman Smith asked Mr. Germain to construct a resolution setting the public hearing for the 
next Planning Board meeting. 
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Mr. Germain:  You are going to move for the adoption of a resolution calling for a Public 
Hearing in the matter of Christopher Pisanti (Lands of Pisanti), Whiting Road (Tax Map #087.-
12-18.0), 2 Lots. This public hearing shall commence at 6:40 pm or as soon thereafter as the 
matter may be heard at the regular scheduled meeting of the planning board on Monday, June 27, 
2016. 
 
Chairman Smith put this in the form of a Motion.  Seconded by Mr. Marzullo. 

In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 

SITE PLAN 
PETER N. TALEV 

8033 BREWERTON ROAD 
PROPOSED ADDITIONAL PARKING AND DRIVE 

IANZU & ROMANS 
 
The applicant asked to be moved to the next meeting.  
 
 

SITE PLAN 
MID-COUNTRY PROPERTIES, LLC 

9206 BREWERTON ROAD 
PROPOSED BUILDING AND ADDITIONAL PARKING 

IANUZI & ROMANS 
 
Tim Coyer, Ianuzi & Romans, Representative 
Joseph Panebianco, Applicant 
 
Mr. Coyer:  There were 3 outstanding issues.  The biggest one is the proposed sign.  We added 
the new proposed sign details.  It is internally lit, not as tall, not as big.  We removed the 
proposed chain link fence near Route 81.  There will not be a double fence now.  We added trees 
that will be 5 feet.  The applicant has asked if he can keep the existing trees. 
 
Chairman Smith:  I do not want existing trees cut down.  If the trees are already mature, that 
shouldn’t be a problem to keep them.   
 
Mr. Panebianco:  The neighbor would like to keep the mature trees there. 
 
Chairman Smith:  We will consider those mature trees as part of your site plan.  This will be the 
discretion of the Codes office. 
 
Mr. Coyer:  We added wall packs onto the proposed building.  Just in case he wants to put the 
wall packs on, we are showing them.  He has not picked the actual fixture for the replacement of 
the tall light fixture yet. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Can we leave that to the approval of the engineer? 
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Mr. Parrish:  Yes, that is fine. 
 
Chairman Smith asked Mr. Germain to construct a motion for the adoption as lead agency. 
 
Mr. Germain:  You are going to move for the adoption of a resolution that the Planning Board of 
the Town of Cicero assume the role of Lead Agency pursuant to the New York State 
Environmental Quality Review Act. 

Chairman Smith put this in the form of a motion.  Seconded by Mr. Marzullo 

In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 
Mr. Ruscitto read:  Be it further resolved that the Planning Board of the Town of Cicero hereby 
determines based upon the applicant's completed environmental assessment, the information 
presented by the applicant, the information contained in the Planning Board's Engineer's Review 
Letter, the information contained in the Onondaga County Planning Board's referral, if any,  the 
Planning Board's personal knowledge of the Site, and all other information presented and 
proceedings had herein that the proposed action will not have a significant effect on the 
environment and that this resolution shall constitute a negative declaration for the purposes of 
Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law of the State of New York.  Further the 
Planning Board Chairman is authorized to complete environmental assessment form in 
accordance with the findings and proceeding had herein. 

That is in the form of a motion.  Seconded by Chairman Smith. 
 
In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 
Chairman Smith asked Mr. Germain to construct a resolution approving the site plan. 
 
Mr. Germain:  You are going to move for the adoption of a resolution approving the site plan 
application known as Mid Country Properties LLC, 9206 Brewerton Road, Proposed building 
and additional parking said plan last dated 6/1/2016.  This approval is contingent on the 
following:   
 
1. The color schemes and renderings and/or elevations as presented by the applicant to the 
planning board in regard to this application shall be incorporated by reference into this site plan 
and the board's approval thereof.   Accordingly the actual project must substantially conform to 
the elevations as presented herein. 
 
2.  This approval recognizes the previous plan approval by this Board and incorporates by 
reference all the conditions contained in that approval as if they were fully enumerated herein.  
Accordingly the applicant must comply with all conditions as set forth in said previous approval 
not modified herein.  
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3. A simple subdivision combining the parcels that comprise the site must be completed as a 
condition of this approval.   
 
4. The applicant will provide cut sheets for the lighting to the planning Board engineer for 
approval.  Any lighting installed will be consistent with those standards as approved by the 
Planning Board Engineer.   
 
5. The reader board signage will not display any neon or loud or overly bright colors and no 
messages will scroll in an interval of less than 15 seconds.   There will be no flashing, 
oscillating, or scrolling of messages.  The applicant has volunteered and agreed to display Amber 
Alerts when requested to do so by Town officials.  The sign may be internally but not externally 
lit. 
 
5. The mature trees on the site need not be removed and replaced by the applicant as they 
add to the properties buffering.   
  
6. The applicant’s site plan indicates that there will be no change from the current water 
flow.   The Planning Board recognizes the need to mitigate or offset the increased stress to the 
sanitary sewer system and accordance with the Town’s policy regarding said offset and/or 
mitigation requires the payment of $4 per gallon of increased usage to be paid to the Town.  
Based on the Applicants projections of no increased usage resulting from the site plan there will 
be no payment due at this time.    
 
7. The Planning Board reserves the right at any time verify the actual average water flow to 
verify that it conforms to the projections supplied by the applicant.  The Applicant, including its 
successors and /or assigns agree as a condition of this approval to cooperate with any reasonable 
request of the town to verify the applicant’s water flow and usage.   In the event the projections 
and the amount of mitigation were not adequate based upon verification of the actual flow, the 
Applicant will pay the Town the Short fall between the projected usage and the actual usage.  
 
Chairman Smith put this in the form of a motion.  Seconded by Mr. Abbey. 
 
In favor: 4 Opposed:  0  Abstained:  0 Motion approved unanimously 
 
Noted for the record that Mr. Coyer provided a complete set of the site plans to the 
Planning Board Clerk. 
 
 

MICHAEL JORDAN SITE PLAN 
7778 BREWERTON ROAD 

PROPOSED CHURCH AND THRIFT STORE 
IANUZI & ROMANS 

 
Tim Coyer, Representative Ianuzi & Romans 
Michael Jordan, Applicant 
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Mr. Coyer:  This is the corner of Kopp Avenue and Route 11.  It is an existing building.  There 
are two tax parcels so we will need to do a lot line adjustment.  They are looking to use the 
property for a thrift shop and worship center, not to be used at the same time.  The hours of 
worship and hours of thrift shop are separate.  There are 19 proposed parking spaces.  We want 
to do gravel now and pave in the future.  There is a sign on the exterior of the building.  We will 
remove the existing sign.  The total maximum of employees at any one time will be 5.  The 
applicant is here if you have any questions. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Paving at a later time is a concern.  Given how little parking there is, it would 
seem that gravel will be a little difficult.  There must be 25 feet of pavement where the parking 
lot accesses a public road.  That will take you well into the site.  The building needs a lot of 
work.  How large of a group for the worship service? 
 
Mr. Jordan: This is the Faith Journey Methodist Church.  Faith Journey came about as a merger 
between Andrews Memorial Church in the Village of North Syracuse and Morgan Road in Clay.  
We merged our two churches together and formed a new church.  We use the Clay campus as 
our main campus.  We sold our North Syracuse campus.  The for worship service, it would be a 
small service, no more than 20 people. 
 
Chairman Smith:  I would suggest that you and the Codes office review the building and make 
sure it is a condition to satisfy the Codes office.  The building is pretty well deteriorated. 
 
Mr. Ruscitto:  How many spots are in the back? 
 
Mr. Coyer:  19 in back and 2 up front for a total of 21. 
 
Mr. Marzullo:  Parking may be a concern.  You can’t park on the roadway.  How many people 
take part in the actual worship service? 
 
Mr. Johnson:  The minister and a few of the congregation. 
 
Mr. Marzullo:  Are you going to provide elevations and color schemes? 
 
Mr. Coyer:  Yes, we will. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Are you planning on changing the color of the building? 
 
Mr. Coyer:  Yes.  We provided pictures of the existing building. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Any elevation changes?  Painting?  Adding windows? 
 
Mr. Johnson:  We would like to add windows. 
 
Chairman Smith:  As part of the site plan approval, we take an active interest in how the building 
looks.  Where will the entrances be?  How will it look overall?  When we approve how it looks, 
you must adhere to that. 
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Mr. Parrish:  The setback distance is less than 150 feet that is required by code.  Their total lot 
length is only 157 feet.  They will need to apply for a variance. 
 
Chairman Smith:  I would like to see this parcel paved.  I don’t think that gravel will work here.  
I would like some input from the Codes office.  We cannot approve if it violates the Town Code.  
The Zoning Board of Appeals will handle that issue for you. 
 

SITE PLAN 
APPROACH ASSOCIATES 

STEWART DRIVE WEST (Tax Map No. 057.-02-29.3) 
PROPOSED BUILDING 
C&S ENGINEERS, INC. 

 
The applicant asked to be moved to the next meeting.  
 

SITE PLAN 
SKETCH REVIEW 

CANTECH AUTOMOTIVE 
6267 E TAFT ROAD 

PROPOSED STORAGE BUILDING 
BARDOUN LAND SURVEYING 

 
Dave Bardone, Representative Bardone Land Surveying 
 
 
Mr. Bardone:  Rocco could not make it in today.  He would like to put in heated storage.  No 
additional parking.  This is basically just winter storage for his clients.  He has no intention of 
adding sewer or water, just electric and gas.  There is one proposed overhead door and one man 
door on the north side of the building.  This is a high security type of storage unit.  No windows.  
Just two doors. 
 
Chairman Smith:  What do you propose for elevation facing Taft Road? 
 
Mr. Bardone:  Just a nice steel building.  They are trying to tuck it in behind the sales lot.  We 
are addressing a wetlands delineation right now. 
 
Chairman Smith:  I do not have any issues with the east or west or even the north elevations.  
Facing East Taft Road, I think we could so some fake windows to make it look nicer.  Given the 
applicant’s efforts to improve the area already, I think doing one elevation will make it look 
better. 
 
Mr. Bardone:  I will speak with him about the elevation. 
 
Mr. Hooper:  What about the existing tractor trailer being used for storage?  What is he going to 
do with that?  It was only supposed to be there for 5 or 10 years. 
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Mr. Abbey:  How tall is the building? 
 
Mr. Bardone:  29.2 feet.  There will be no signage, no marketing.  Just existing clients. 
 
Chairman Smith:  What about lighting? 
 
Mr. Bardone:  We are still working on that.  We want the building to be secure with some type of 
motion lighting but, at the same time, we do not want it lit up.  He wants to keep it low key. 
 
Chairman Smith:  The Planning Board does not allow storage in commercial zones. But this is 
directly related to the business on the site.   
 
Mr. Germain:  Your site plan is going to have to have a use note that will need to be pretty tight.   
 
Chairman Smith: This is zoned general commercial plus.  This is an accessory use for the current 
site plan.  This is a fairly unique business. 
 
Mr. Barone:  I will work with Mr. Germain and the Board on an exact note for the statement of 
use. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Automotive storage directly related to his business is one suggestion. 
 
 

SITE PLAN 
SKETCH REVIEW 

VISIONS FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 
5788 EAST CIRCLE DRIVE 

PROPOSED BUILDING 
DELTA ENGINEERS, ARTCHITECTS & LAND SURVEYORS 

 
Dan Faldzinski, Representative Delta Engineers 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  This is on East Circle Drive.  The former Chase facility.  It is old and this plan 
proposes to have a bank with drive through service.  It is approximately 2200 square feet.  The 
applicant is proposing to leave the asphalt as it exists with the exception of the southerly portion 
where we would take out about 6 parking spaces in order to catch storm water drainage from the 
building. 
 
Chairman Smith:  What about the rain water from the top of the building? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  We have downspouts directed to the retention area.  We are showing those as 
overflows.  The flow would run out of the basin and continue its run off. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Is this retention or detention on the site? 
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Mr. Faldzinski:    In large events, you will see runoff off site.  These retention areas will capture 
the runoff from the roof area.  From the pavement areas, the runoff will be unchanged.  Right 
now, it runs from northeast to southwest on the property.  We do not propose changing that at all. 
 
Chairman Smith:  How are you going to get water from the building over to the basins? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  Underground storm sewer pipe. 
 
Chairman Smith:  How many parking spaces? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  30 within the limits of the property.  This is a reduction of 7 spaces from the 
previous layout. 
 
Chairman Smith:  How many employees? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  5-7. 
 
Chairman Smith:  You will have 23 spaces for customers. 
 
Mr. Abbey:  What are the hours of operation? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  I will have to look them up. 
 
Mr. Marzullo:  Will you please provide those next time?  The hours of operation?  Also, is ther 
offsite parking? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:   Yes. 
 
Chairman Smith:  How many parking spaces are available in the Reciprocal Agreement? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  11. 
 
Chairman Smith:  The total available parking should allow us to add green space and decrease 
pavement.  Given the storm water concerns, I think we have an opportunity here to add more 
green space.  The Reciprocal Agreement gives that additional parking. 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:   How do you feel about the northern spaces? 
 
Chairman Smith:  I think you have more than enough parking spaces.  It is up to the applicant 
about which parking spaces to reduce. 
 
Mr. Germain:  Can you provide a copy of the access easement? 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  Yes.  I have one with me. 
 
Chairman Smith:  What about signage? 
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Mr. Faldzinski:  We are proposing four signs.  One is canopy mounted.  One drive through 
canopy.  The second sign is at the entrance of the facility along the west side of the building.  
The third sign is on the eastern side of the building.  The fourth sign is a monument sign, 
approximately 7 x 10.  It will be the logo.  1 and ½ by 5 and ½ feet, internally lit. 
 
Chairman Smith:  Will there be a reader board.  Please verify one way or the other.  We also 
need a landscaping plan. 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  I did submit one. 
 
Chairman Smith:   Make sure the applicant knows that the Codes Office will do an inspection 
before Certificate of Occupancy is issued and all landscaping presented must be installed. 
 
Mr. Hooper:  The monument sign proposed at northwest corner when, in my opinion, northeast 
corner would be better.  More visible in my opinion. 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  I will run that by the owner.  What do I do now?  Resubmit the comments to the 
town? 
 
Chairman Smith:  Yes, work with Mr. Parrish and the Codes Office. 
 
Mr. Faldzinski:  Will county planning be involved as well? 
 
Chairman Smith:  This was sent to the county for their June 29th meeting.   
 
Chairman Smith:  Do any members of the Board have anything additional?  The Board did not 
have anything further. 
 
Mr. Marzullo made a motion to adjourn. Chairman Smith seconded the motion. The motion 
was approved unanimously.  
 

Next Scheduled Regular Meeting:  Monday, June 27, 2016 at 6:30 PM 

IN AS MUCH AS THERE WAS NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE BOARD, THE 
MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 7:42 pm. 
 
Submitted by Lisa L. Stewart 
Planning Board Clerk 
 

 
 


